
For requests for further information 
Contact:  Cherry Foreman 
Tel:       01270 686463 
E-Mail:    cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk  with any apologies 

  
 

Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday, 17th December, 2013 

Time: 9.30 am 

Venue: Committee Suite 2, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach. 
CW11 1HZ 

 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part 2 
items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on the 
agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 

non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda. 

 
 
3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for 

members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relating to the work of the body 
in question.  Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the 
Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking 
will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not 
required to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 
hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at least three 
clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with that notice. This will 
enable an informed answer to be given. 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



4. Bollington Town Hall Complex, Bollington  (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 To consider the transfer of the freehold of this complex to Bollington Town Council. 

 
 
5. Transfer of Water Street School, Bollington  (Pages 9 - 16) 
 
 To consider the transfer of the land at buildings of the former School to Bollington Trust 

Initiative. 

 
 
6. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 
 The reports relating to the remaining items on the agenda have been withheld from public 

circulation and deposit pursuant to Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government Act 1972 on 
the grounds that the matters may be determined with the press and public excluded.  
  
The Committee may decide that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 
 
 
PART 2 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITHOUT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

PRESENT 

 

 
 

 
7. Manor Way Elderley Persons Home, Crewe  (Pages 17 - 22) 
 
 To consider the sale of this property. 

 



Version 5  

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO PORTFOLIO HOLDER – FINANCE 
 

Report of:             Property Portfolio Manager 
Subject/Title:        Bollington Town Hall Complex, Bollington 
Date of Meeting:  17 December 2013 
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Peter Raynes 

                                                                  
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To consider a request from Bollington Town Council to transfer 

Bollington Town Hall Complex, 34 Wellington Road, Bollington, 
Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK10 5JR (shown edged red on the attached 
plan) as part of the second phase (Appendix B) of the Local Service 
Delivery -Transfer and Devolutions to Town and Parish Councils 
process. 

 
2.0      Decision Requested 
 
2.1 To transfer the freehold of the Bollington Town Hall Complex, 34 

Wellington Road, Bollington, Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK10 5JR (shown 
edged red on the attached plan) to Bollington Town Council for a 
nominal value on the terms stated in 3.3 and other terms to be agreed 
by the Property Portfolio Manager.  

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 On 5th September 2011 it was decided by the Cabinet that a number of 

properties should be transferred to the Town or Parish Council for the 
area in which the properties are located as a second phase of the Local 
Service Delivery -Transfer and Devolutions to Town and Parish Councils 
process. 

 
3.2 Bollington Town Hall is transferring to Bollington Town Council as an 

approved ‘Appendix B’ property following the Cabinet approval. 
Bollington Civic Hall has recently transferred as an ‘Appendix A’ 
property.  

 
3.3 It was reported to Cabinet that every transfer would be on the following 

terms namely that:  
 

• The transfer would take place for a nominal value (£1) and the Town 
Council will be wholly responsible for the service and the asset save 
insofar as the Council has residual legal responsibilities under 
contracts or legislative provisions. 
   

• The agreement would  secure an overage payment for the Council if 
there is a future planning permission which enhances the value of the 
asset or the Town  Council  sells  the asset within an 15 year period 
with increase in value/ proceeds of sale returning to  Cheshire East on 
a reducing sliding scale.  

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



Version 5  

 
Cabinet resolved that delegated authority be given to identified officers 
to finalise standard terms for all the transfers. Standard heads of terms 
were subsequently approved by the relevant officers and the Strategic 
Director (Places and Organisational Capacity. 

 
3.4 Remedial works to re-line the existing drainage system at the Town 

Council offices in Bollington have recently been completed. It is 
understood by the Councils external Structural Engineering Consultants 
that the drainage system has been the primary cause of settlement 
within the premises. These works should result in the sub strata ground 
return to a stable condition and the current problems with structural 
cracking should cease.  As cracking is noticeable arrangements have 
been made to fill-in the internal cracks and external pointing, where 
appropriate. Although no further problems are envisaged, it is intended 
as a precautionary measure, to install some additional ‘tell tales ‘to 
enable the situation to be monitored periodically. 
 

 
3.5  The transfer to Bollington Town Council will be based upon the standard 

heads of terms. 
 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1  Bollington 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Cllr Peter Hayes 
 Cllr Bill Livesley 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Carbon reduction  
                                                             - Health 
 
6.1  The transfer is in line with the council policy of transfer and devolution of 

asset to Town and Parish councils for a nominal value. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 Annual running costs for Bollington Town Hall are currently forecast at 

£9,468 for the year 2013-14, with a forecast Room hire income of 
£9,100, giving an overall net forecast to CEC of £368.  The 2013-14 
budget is net nil due to the property being a site subject to devolution 
plus as the building is currently occupied, the room hire charges are 
forecast to recover costs.  Therefore through the proposed transfer, 
whilst there is no direct revenue budget saving the Council is 
transferring any risk of holding costs should the occupancy position 
change in future. 

 
 
 

Page 2



Version 5  

8.0        Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 The Council has no power to dispose of property by a freehold transfer 

unless it secures the best consideration reasonably obtainable or it has 
Secretary of State consent. Under the Local Government Act 1972 
General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 the Secretary of State gave 
general consent to  disposals for less than best consideration if: 

 
(a) The disposing authority considers that the purpose for which the land 

is to be disposed of is likely to contribute to the achievement of 
any one or more of the following objects of the whole or any past of 
its area, or all or any persons resident or present in its area:  
a. The promotion or improvement of economic well-being; 
b. The promotion or improvement of social well-being; 
c. The promotion or improvement of environmental well-being;  

 
 
(b)  the difference between the unrestricted value of the land to be  

disposed of and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed 
£2m; and  

 
(c) All other conditions and requirements of the Consent are satisfied.  

 
8.2 In transferring assets the Council must behave prudently to fulfil its 

fiduciary duty 
 
8.3 If there is any open space within the land outlined red on the attached 

plan, then it will be necessary to advertise the potential disposal of this 
under the provision of the Local Government Act. 

 
  
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 The transfer will be subject to the overage provisions as approved by Cabinet. 
 
Access to Information 
 

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by   
contacting the report writer: 

 
  Name: Lee Beckett 

 Designation: Valuer 
            Tel No: 01270 686122  
             Email:  lee.beckett@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Church

St

Gregory's

Council Offices

Shelter

Manse

34A

25

24

27

20

26

34

30
13

22

36

Church

´
Plan Ref:
Date:
Scale:

Bollington Town Hall (Council Offices)

1:500

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
OS Licence 0100049046. 2011.

PM Bollington 
Town Hall

3rd Dec 2013

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Maccle
sfield Canal

St

Church
Gregory's

2b

LB

FB

137.5m

Sl

140.8m

Council Offices

137.8m

Wheelwrights Cottages

View
AlderleyMi

dd
lew

oo
d W

ay

Towing Path

Buildings

Shelter

El
Sub Sta

(P
ath

 an
d C

yc
le 

Tra
ck

)

Coronation

PH

Drain

Hall

GREENBANK DRIVE

ROUND GARDENS

The Round House

Presbytery

Manse

l 11

Estate

11
4

1

33

23

4

3

2

34A

4a

42

87

13

24 22

26

14

2a 95

40

12

5

6

10

35

128

126130

32

15

34

81
97

20a

12a

36

83

46

20

21

27

25

30

85

52

1

Church

20

3

1

2

4

22

1

2a

11

1

42

4

3

1

13

12 ´
Plan Ref:
Date:
Scale:

Bollington Town Hall (Council Offices)

1:1,250

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
OS Licence 0100049046. 2011.

PM Bollington 
Town Hall

3rd Dec 2013

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Version 7 

 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL  

 

REPORT TO: PORTFOLIO HOLDER 

 

Date of Meeting: 17TH December 2013 

Report of:   Director of Economic Growth and Prosperity 

Subject/Title: Property Asset Transfer: - Transfer of the Former Water Street 

School, Bollington 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Peter Raynes 

 

 

 

1.0 Report Summary 

 

1.1 This report is intended to seek further approval to the property asset 

 transfer of the land and buildings known as the Former Water Street 

School, Bollington shown edged in red on the attached plan to local 

charity (number 1110683) Bollington Initiative Trust (BIT), upon the 

revised terms outlined in this report. 

 

    

2.0 Decision Requested 

  

2.1 It is recommended to Portfolio Holder: 

 

 2.1.1 That the revised land area for transfer pursuant to the Cabinet 

Decision dated 7th May 2013, as per the attached plan be 

approved. 

 

2.1.2 That delegated authority be given to the Director of Economic 

Growth and Prosperity and the Interim Monitoring Officer and 

Head of Legal Services to finalise the details of the proposed 

freehold transfer and long lease assignment of the property to 

Bollington Initiative Trust (BIT) 

 

2.1.3 That the yellow land be declared surplus to Council 

requirements and placed on the open market for disposal and 

delegated authority be given to the Director of Economic Growth 

and Prosperity and the Interim Monitoring Officer and Head of 

Legal Services to finalise the details of the proposed sale 

following appropriate marketing and negotiation and any 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



Version 7 

 

statutory declarations/statements of truth as may be required to 

regularise title and transfer the yellow land. 

 

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 

 

3.1  BIT following consideration of their proposals to take on the building 

and site have decided not to accept transfer of the whole site and have 

revised their offer to exclude all of the land coloured yellow on the 

attached plan due to the potential extent of liability for repair and 

maintenance in relation to the retaining wall at the rear of the land 

coloured yellow. 

 

3.2  The yellow land was a detached playground for the former school site 

and has been unused for sometime following the relocation of the 

cadets who were leasing part of the former school building and used 

the detached playground for practice. 

 

3.3  The revised transfer area will leave the Council with the ongoing 

liability for the repair and maintenance of the retaining wall but will still 

absolve the Council of the ongoing maintenance of the former school 

building and school car park but protecting the building for community 

uses as per the original cabinet decision on the 7th May 2013. 

 

3.4  The yellow land abuts a number of neighbouring properties both 

residential and commercial and there has been significant interest over 

a number of years and most recently following the original cabinet 

decision to transfer to BIT from a number of prospective purchasers 

and therefore the Council is proposing to market the land without 

further delay to absolve itself of the liability and potentially generate a 

capital receipt in line with the District Valuer’s recommendation in 

formal valuation report undertaken prior to the original cabinet decision. 

 

3.5  BIT will be able to focus their attention and funding on managing and 

improving the main building for community uses and the Council will 

endeavour to sell on the retained land and retaining wall liability as 

soon as possible following completion of this decision. 

 

4.0 Ward Affected 

 

4.1 Bollington 

 

 

Page 10



Version 7 

 

5.0  Local Ward Member 

 

5.1          Cllr Livesley 

 

6.0  Policy Implications including – Carbon reduction/Health 

  

6.1          In line with the original cabinet decision. Disposal of buildings will 

reduce the Council’s carbon footprint and liability for carbon tax. 

  

6.2          National Policy is designed for decentralise government and give 

communities power to make a difference in their area. This initiative 

clearly aligns with this national drive. 

 

7.0   Financial Implications (Authorised by the Director of Finance and 

Business Services) 

 

7.1   Further to the financial implications within the original cabinet report on 

7th May 2013, which still stand with the exception of the value of the 

reduced site now transferring is £360,000 and the value of the yellow 

land is in the region of £75,000 albeit as discussed in the original 

paper, the land is hindered by a retaining wall running the whole length 

of the site to the rear and any access to redevelop the land could erode 

the land value in order to do so. That said, there are neighbouring 

properties who would welcome the opportunity to enhance their own 

properties, both residential and commercial and prevent anti social 

behaviour occurring on the area if left unoccupied indefinitely as it has 

been for a number of years following LGR and pending conclusion of 

the transfer to BIT which has been outstanding since LGR due to 

unresolved negotiations.  It is anticipated that a capital receipt could be 

achieved to absolve the Council of this ongoing liability for a land 

locked piece of retained land following the completed transfer to BIT 

although a nil value transfer would also be agreeable in order to 

absolve the Council of the liability and in line with the original cabinet 

paper and District Valuer valuation report. 

 

7.2          The transfer to BIT is still a peppercorn consideration and in line with 

the original Cabinet Decision, whilst the Council is proposing to forego 

a capital receipt to support the promotion of well being as outlined, 

revenue and capital maintenance liabilities will be reduced. 

 

 

 

Page 11



Version 7 

 

8.0   Legal Implications (Authorised by the Interim Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services) 

 

8.1         As per the original Cabinet Decision. 

             

9.0  Risk Management 

 

9.1          As per the original Cabinet Decision except to state that given BIT no 

longer wishes to accept transfer of the yellow land with the rest of the 

site a decision to accept this proposal and break up of the site is being 

sought on the basis of less liability transferring to BIT and the Council 

still has the option of selling the yellow land on the open market to 

absolve itself of ongoing liability and potentially generate a capital 

receipt. 

 

 

10.0  Background and Options 

  

10.1        As per the original cabinet decision save as to the revised transfer area 

proposing to exclude the detached play ground area coloured yellow on 

the attached plan. 

 

10.2        BIT upon further consideration of the running costs and ongoing liability 

for the former school building and external areas in its current run down 

condition has decided that a transfer of the whole on the agreed terms 

and conditions including overage as detailed within the original cabinet 

decision is not viable for them in terms of cost of refurbishment and 

improvements and ongoing repairs and maintenance thereafter and is 

willing to accept transfer of only the main school building and yard/car 

park as coloured blue and brown on the attached plan, leaving the 

Council with the liability for the yellow land (detached play area) and 

the retaining wall situated within. 

 

10.3          The Council has considered this revised offer from BIT and still 

recommends transfer as per the original cabinet decision albeit 

excluding the yellow land as proposed by BIT on the basis that the 

Council still wants to complete this transfer for all the reasons set out in 

the original paper for the benefit of the local community and the local 

community groups using the building. 

 

10.4            The Council proposes to market the yellow land for sale following 

completion of this transfer to BIT ensuring all necessary rights and 

reservations are secured to access the yellow land on foot and enable 

Page 12



Version 7 

 

a sale to interested party thereafter, extending the Councils liability for 

the land and wall a little longer but still enabling the disposal of the 

whole site as originally proposed but in a slightly revised way. 

 

11.0  Access to Information 

 

11.1  The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 

contacting the report writer: 

 

Name:                            Joanne Jones 

Designation:                   Property Services Manager 

Tel No:                           01270 686127 

Email:                             joanne.m.jones@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Weir

Works
TCB

FBSl

148.7m

142.3m

143.9m

Place

Brook

Sheldon

Pool Bank
Garage

Cour
tDean

PH

Harrop

WATER

Bank

High PARK STREET

PL
AC

E

STORE ST

STREET

MA
RK

ET

FERN BANK RISE
HIG

H S
TR

EE
T

OLDHAM STREET

MEW
S

104

FO
UNDRY ST

River Dean

Mill Cottages

JOHN ST

Ha
ilw

oo
d H

ou
se

CHURCH

Quarry Bank

11

1

l 6

2

4

10

8 t
o 1

2

to 
61

55

26A

60

1to
10

3

8

9

26

7

5

24A

85

47

41

27

73
a

21b

42
49

40

58

51

45

23

63

19

14

56

40a

12

75a

53

24
15

79

32

77

75

68

16

22

20

18

21a

51a

28

88

43

98

73

78

8a

30
21

73
b

79a

3a

10
2

38

58
a

25

70

65

81

37

44

31

35

21

4

24

1

11

42

3

51

1

40

11

2

1

8

27

14

11

15

40

53

5

30

1

1

63

24

20

1

26

79

2

6

28

3

2

Court

68

8

1

PH

1

2

7

5

1

9

26

6

6

8

5

7

56

2

2

27

4

8

23

14

75

´
Plan Ref:
Date:
Scale:

FORMER WATER STREET SCHOOL, BOLLINGTON.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
OS Licence 0100049045. 2013.

KW
09/12/13

1:1250 at A4

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

NOT FOR PUBLICATION



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

NOT FOR PUBLICATION



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Bollington Town Hall Complex, Bollington
	Bollington Town Hall Plan 1
	Bollington Town Hall Plan 2

	5 Transfer of Water Street School, Bollington
	Former Water Street School Bollington 2

	7 Manor Way Elderley Persons Home, Crewe
	Manor Way OS Plan


